
STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING, ROOM 113
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 24, 2013

8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Larry Hudkins, Chair 
Brent Smoyer, Vice Chair
Deb Schorr
Jane Raybould
Roma Amundson

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on October 23, 2013.

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at
8:32 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF THE STAFF MEETING MINUTES OF OCTOBER 17,
2013

MOTION: Amundson moved and Raybould seconded approval of the Staff Meeting
minutes of October 17, 2013.  Raybould, Amundson, Smoyer and
Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr abstained from voting.  Motion carried 4-0,
with one abstention. 

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Discussion of County Engineer Position
B. Update on Appraisals of the County Properties: Community Mental

Health Center (CMHC) (2201 South 17th Street); Midtown Center
(2966 “O” Street); Trabert Hall (2202 South 11th Street); and Former
Attention Center for Youth Building (2220 South 10th Street) 

Page 1 BOC/STAFF/10/24/2013



MOTION: Schorr moved and Smoyer seconded approval of the additions to the
agenda.  Schorr, Smoyer, Amundson, Raybould and Hudkins voted aye. 
Motion carried 5-0.

 3 A) COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER (CMHC) TRANSITION
UPDATE; AND B) PSYCHIATRIC RESIDENTIAL REHABILITATION
UPDATE - Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer; Ron
Sorensen, Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Executive Director;
C. J. Johnson, Region V Systems Administrator 

C. J. Johnson, Region V Systems Administrator, said he and Ron Sorensen, Community
Mental Health Center (CMHC) Executive Director, met with representatives of
CenterPointe, Inc., Lutheran Family Services (LFS) and Aging Partners yesterday to
discuss the Harvest Program, a collaborative effort between CMHC, CenterPointe and
Aging Partners to work with individuals who are over the age of 55 and suffer the
combined effects of advanced age, impaired health, mental illness and/or substance
abuse.  He said LFS indicated it would like to be part of that program and may be
asked to provide a community support worker. 

Johnson then discussed the Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness
(PATH) Program.  He said Region V receives $65,000 from the federal government to
provide community support or outreach to individuals who are homeless.  Those funds
have historically been split between CenterPointe and CMHC, with CenterPointe
providing community support services and CMHC providing outreach services to the
homeless.  Johnson said Region V issued an RFP for CMHC’s portion and received two
proposals.  The Evaluation Team has recommended selection of CenterPointe.  

Johnson said the Evaluation Committee reviewed two responses to the Request for
Proposal (RFP) to take over psychiatric residential rehabilitation services, also known
as The Heather, and has recommended selection of CenterPointe.  He said that
recommendation was approved by the Behavioral Health Advisory Committee (BHAC)
and will be presented to the Region V Governing Board. 

Raybould inquired about the study by the University of Nebraska-Lincoln (UNL) Public
Policy Center on the effectiveness of the transition.  Johnson said the proposal had
three phases.  He said the first phase involved looking at the logistics and said Region
V felt it was not necessary to have them provide that evaluation because Region V was 
already receiving regular updates from the agencies.  Johnson said the Public Policy
Center will begin their work in December and will look at what the transition
experience was like for consumers and employees and how the transition affected the
entire system.

Page 2 BOC/STAFF/10/24/2013



Schorr asked Topher Hansen, CenterPointe Director, who was in attendance, how he
plans to utilize space for these programs.  Hansen said the Midtown Center is
dedicated to day rehabilitation services and is operating at capacity.  He said
consumers from the Midtown Center and another day rehabilitation program operated
by CenterPointe have embraced the program and have asked to rename it “MidPointe.”
Hansen said he will work with the State Fire Marshall to see what will be required to
expand its capacity and will seek bids for a sprinkler system.  He will bring that
information back to the Board.  Hansen said the 24-hour Crisis Line will be operated
out of the CenterPointe’s 13th and E Street facility and higher level calls will be handled
by two Master’s level therapists who will be in charge of the program.  He said
CenterPointe is working with the Lincoln Police Department (LPD) to provide crisis
response.  He said CenterPointe will not continue the current arrangement for the
psychiatric residential rehabilitation program, adding CenterPointe will operate the
program based on the rate established by the State that is passed through Region V. 
Hansen said the program likely will not remain at O.U.R. Homes, for business reasons. 
He said he believes the transition will be smooth, but said finding a facility that meets
regulations will be one of the toughest hurdles. 

Raybould asked the time line for transitioning the psychiatric residential rehabilitation
program to CenterPointe’s management.  Johnson said the goal is still to have it
transition by January 1, 2014.

Schorr inquired about the “atmosphere” at CMHC.  Sorensen said staff would like
better communication from LFS.   Thorpe said there should be progress once the
agreement between Region V Systems, Lancaster County and LFS for the purpose of
defining the transition of certain behavioral and mental health services to be provided
by LFS to individuals currently under the care of the County is signed by all parties. 
Johnson said LFS is on track but is taking a different approach than he would have.

 4 EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES OVERSIGHT AUTHORITY
(EMSOA) UPDATE - Dr. Jason Kruger, Medical Director 

Schorr introduced Dr. Jason Kruger, Medical Director for Emergency Medical Services
Oversight Authority (EMSOA).  She said Dr. Kruger provides medical oversight for
Lincoln Fire and Rescue (LFR) and the following rural squads and private contracting
entities: Beatrice Rural Fire, Bennet Rescue, Clatonia Rescue, Cortland Volunteer Fire,
Douglas Rescue, Duncan Aviation, Firth Rural Fire, Hallam Rescue, Hickman Volunteer
Fire and Rescue, Kawasaki, Nebraska Air Guard, Palmyra Rescue, Pickrell Rural Fire,
Southeast Rural and Waverly Fire. 

Page 3 BOC/STAFF/10/24/2013



Dr. Kruger said he attends the Mutual Aid meetings and has done ride-alongs with
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) supervisors and ambulance paramedics.  He said
he also visits every rural agency, every year, to provide teaching and said the recent
focus has been on pre-hospital cardiac arrest treatment.  Dr. Kruger said LFR has
incorporated the cardio cerebral resuscitation (CCR) model and a “pit crew” (pre-
assigned roles) cardio-pulmonary resuscitation (CPR) model has been incorporated in
the rural areas.  They have also introduced pre-hospital hypothermia after
resuscitation (cooling in the field) to improve outcomes.  He reported that LFR has
been accepted as the first EMS agency in Nebraska in the Cardiac Arrest Registry to
Enhance Survival (CARES) and will now be able to compare its data to national
averages. 

 5 POTENTIAL LITIGATION - Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney 

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Raybould seconded to enter Executive Session at
9:26 a.m. for the purpose of protecting the public interest with regards
to potential litigation. 

The Chair restated the motion for the record.

ROLL CALL:  Amundson, Schorr, Smoyer, Raybould and Hudkins voted aye.  Motion
carried 5-0. 

Raybould exited the meeting.

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Schorr seconded to exit Executive Session at 9:46
a.m.  Schorr, Smoyer, Amundson and Hudkins voted aye.  Raybould was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

Raybould returned to the meeting at 9:47 a.m.  

 6 PERSONNEL RULE CHANGES - Richard Grabow, Deputy County
Attorney; Doug McDaniel, Personnel Director

Richard Grabow, Deputy County Attorney, reported on a proposed change to
Personnel Rule 18.1 (Compensation for Absence on Holidays) to provide a pro-rated
schedule based on date of hire.  The proposed change will go to the Personnel Policy
Board for recommendation. 

Page 4 BOC/STAFF/10/24/2013



 7 HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT REPORT - Sue Eckley, County Risk
Manager; Keerun Kamble, City Wellness Coordinator; Mike Heyl, Public
Health Educator; Charlotte Burke, Division Manager, Health Promotion
and Outreach, Lincoln-Lancaster County Health Department (LLCHD)
Director

Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager, noted 31% of employees (271 out of 871)
participated in the recent health risk assessment and said there had been questions
regarding some of the results, which appeared to be skewed by the body mass index
(BMI) calculations.  Employees with more muscle were shown as obese, when they are
not.

Keerun Kamble, City Wellness Coordinator, gave an overview of Lancaster County
2013 LiveWell Survey Aggregate Highlights (Exhibit A), noting four health priorities
were identified by responses to the survey: 1) Nutrition/Weight Management; 2)
Physical Activity; 3) Tobacco Use; and 4) Stress Management.  

Eckley noted the number of respondents who indicated they are seriously considering
stopping smoking and said the County needs to get information about its smoking
cessation program out to employees.

Board members expressed concern about the responses to alcohol use and suggested
there is a need for alcohol education.

Kamble also presented a summary of next steps for the Lancaster County Wellness
Program (see Exhibit A).  There was consensus to proceed as outlined.

Eckley said the survey will be offered annually, going forward.

 8 SHERIFF CAPTAIN COMPENSATION - Terry Wagner, Lancaster
County Sheriff; Jeff Bliemeister, Chief Deputy Sheriff

Terry Wagner, Lancaster County Sheriff, said the sheriff captains were the only
unrepresented, unclassified group whose salaries were not addressed in August.

Jeff Bliemeister, Chief Deputy Sheriff, outlined a proposed resolution that will adopt a
salary schedule for deputy sheriff captains, which he said is based on a similar
resolution the Board passed in January, 2013 for the Attorney II’s in the County
Attorney’s Office and Public Defender’s Office.  He said the document was drafted with
the assistance of Doug McDaniel, Personnel Director; Nicole Gross, Compensation
Technician, Personnel Department; and Richard Grabow, Deputy County Attorney,
using the usual array of counties.  A draft was also presented to the Sheriff’s Merit
Commission and received unanimous approval.  

Page 5 BOC/STAFF/10/24/2013



Bliemeister noted the Sheriff’s Office competes with the Lincoln Police Department
(LPD) for personnel and said the Board has given that consideration in the past.  He
said an LPD officer curently makes 4% more that a topped-out Lincoln Sheriff’s Office
(LSO) deputy.  A topped-out LPD sergeant makes 0.8% more than a LSO sergeant.  In
contrast, a topped-out LPD captain makes 13.3% more than a topped-out LSO
captain.

Bliemeister said the proposed resolution does the following: 1) Places a cap on
captains’ salaries; 2) Creates a structure to minimize the compression of salaries
between captains and topped-out sergeants; 3) Provides a merit-based financial
incentive (2.5% aggregate), based on mandated annual evaluations (a captain will not
receive the incentive once they are topped-out); 4) Provides objectivity for personnel
seeking promotion to captain; and 5) Provides a salary adjustment for the LSO
captains.  It also provides a 2% cost-of-living increase that mirrors that of
unrepresented employees (increase will not be retroactive and will be less for a
topped-out captain).

In response to a question from Schorr, Bliemeister said the fiscal impact of the cost-of-
living element will be $8,437.

Raybould noted this group did not get a salary increase in August, however they did
receive an increase in January.  Bliemeister said the total aggregate increase was
3.62% (the increase in January was 2.02% and another increase of 1.60% in July). 
Wagner explained it was structured that way at the Board’s request to spread the
increase out over two budget cycles.  

Raybould inquired about annual increases for comparison.  Bliemeister said increases
have been as follows for the past four years: 1.5% increase in 2010; 1.0% in 2011;
1.0% in 2012 and 3.62% in 2013.  He said those are aggregate numbers with no step
process in place.

MOTION: Amundson moved and Smoyer seconded to schedule the resolution for
action on a regular County Board of Commissioners Meeting agenda.  

Raybould said she would like an opportunity to view the document before voting.  She
also questioned the fairness of giving the LSO captains an additional increase this year. 
Bliemeister said other unrepresented, unclassified employees receive merit-based
increases in addition to a cost-of-living increase.  Wagner said this group should have
been addressed in August with the attorneys, but it has taken time to get the
resolution “fine-tuned.”

Raybould asked whether LPD uses a similar model.  Doug McDaniel, Personnel
Director, appeared and said LPD captains are unionized and said LSO captains can
choose to be represented by a union, as well.  Wagner said the County wants to avoid
that, if it can.  McDaniel added that he views the plan as responsible, consistent and
certainly not extravagant, given the level of responsibility these positions have.

Page 6 BOC/STAFF/10/24/2013



ROLL CALL:  Schorr, Smoyer, Amundson and Hudkins voted aye.  Raybould voted
nay.  Motion carried 4-1.

A copy of the proposed resolution was provided to the Board and County Clerk’s Office
following the meeting (Exhibit B).

 9 ACTION ITEMS

A. Approve Revised Budget for Enhancement Grant Application to
Nebraska Crime Commission

MOTION: Schorr moved and Amundson seconded to authorize signature by the
Chair.  Smoyer, Amundson, Raybould, Schorr and Hudkins voted aye. 
Motion carried 5-0.

10 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

11 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Retirement Match

Raybould felt the Board should reduce the retirement match for new hires, noting the
County was successful in getting enabling legislation passed and four of the five
bargaining units have agreed to support the change.  Richard Grabow, Deputy County
Attorney, appeared and clarified that it is only three of the five bargaining units.

MOTION: Raybould moved to reduce the retirement match for new hires in the
unrepresented classification from 1.5 to 1.0 to 1.0 to 1.0, beginning
January 1, 2014.

The motion died for the lack of a second.

B. County Board Presentation to Elected Official Salary Review
Committee

It was noted the Chair will present information to the Elected Official Salary Review
Committee on the duties of County Commissioner.  The Committee will present its
recommendations to the Board at the December 19th County Board Staff Meeting. 

C. Planning Commission Appointment (Maja Harris)

It was noted the Mayor has also asked the Board to consider reappointment of Ken
Weber (Exhibit C).

Page 7 BOC/STAFF/10/24/2013



The Board scheduled the appointment and reappointment on the October 29, 2013
County Board of Commissioners Meeting agenda.

12 PENDING

There were no pending items.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Discussion of County Engineer Position

Raybould said she would like to discuss whether to appoint a new County Engineer in
light of the discussions going on with the Lincoln-Lancaster County Consolidation Task
Force or let it go through the election process.

Eagan said state statues require the County Board to fill an elected official position
within 45 days of the date of the vacancy.  In the case of the County Engineer, the
person appointed must be a licensed engineer in the State of Nebraska.

B. Update on Appraisal of the Following County Properties: Community
Mental Health Center (CMHC) (2201 South 17th Street); Midtown
Center (2966 “O” Street); Trabert Hall (2202 South 11th Street); and
Former Attention Center for Youth Building (2220 South 10th Street) 

Eagan said Don Killeen, County Property Manager, anticipates he will have all the
appraisals back within a week.  

Board consensus was to schedule an update on the October 31th Staff Meeting
agenda.

13 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBERS MEETINGS

A. Information Services Policy Committee (ISPC) - Raybould

Raybould said they discussed the interlocal agreement between the City and County
and the role of the ISPC.  She noted one item of concern is that Information Services
(IS) would not need to seek approval from the County for budget matters or rate
approval.  NOTE: IS is a City department.  Board members indicated that they would
want to be informed.   

Thorpe noted the agreement is “silent” on the issue of IS’s revolving fund and felt that
should be addressed in case the City and County would decide to terminate the
interlocal agreement.

Page 8 BOC/STAFF/10/24/2013



B. Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Advisory Committee -
Raybould

Raybould said Phil Tegeler, Executive Director, Cornhusker Place Substance Abuse
Treatment Center, suggested it would be helpful for other mental health service
providers in the community to have information about the transition of services so they
can communicate that information to their consumers.

Schorr suggested the Human Services Federation as a forum to communicate that
information.

14 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

There were no emergency items or other business.

15 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Schorr seconded to adjourn the meeting at 11:07
a.m.  Schorr, Smoyer, Raybould, Amundson and Hudkins voted aye. 
Motion carried 5-0.

_________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk

Page 9 BOC/STAFF/10/24/2013
















